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ALDAR PROPERTIES PISC 1

BOARD OF DIRECTORS® REFORT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, [ am delighted to present the consolidated audited financial
stalements of Aldar Properties PISC (*the Company™) and iis subsidiaries {together referred to as
“the Group™} for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group continue to be the property development, investment and
management of its real estate assets including offices, malls, hotels, schosls, marinas and go!f courses.

Financial results

The financial results of the Group have been presented on page 10 of these consolidated financial
statements. Please also refer to financial review section for details,

Financial statements

The Directors reviewed and approved the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the vear
ended 31 December 2013.

Directors

The members of the Board of Directors as of 31 December 2013 are:

Mr. Abubaker Seddiq Al Khoori Chairman
Mr. Ali Eid Al Mheiri Vice Chairman
Dr. Suftan Ahmed Al Jaber Director
Mr. Mubarak Matar Al Humairi Director
Mr. Ahmed Khalifa Mohamed Al Mehairi  Director
Mr. Mansour Mohamed Al Mulla Director
Mr. Ali Majid Al Mansouri Director
i, Mohamed Haji Al Khoori Pirector
Mr. Ali Saeed Abdulla Sulayem Al Falasi  Director
Mr. Martin Lee Edelman Director
Release

The Directors release from liability the external auditor and management in connection with their duties
for the year ended 31 December 2013,

Auditor
Deloiite & Touche (M.E.) are eligible to be re-appointed as external suditor for the year ending

31 December 2014 and have expressed their willingness to be re-appointed.

On bebalf of the Board of Direciors

b1
9.\

Abubaker Seddiq Al Khwori
Chairman

-

It February 20 4




ALDAR PROPERTIES PJSC

FINANCIAL REVIEW

‘The financial infermation contained in this review is based on the consolidated financial statements, The
nature of and accounting policies for individual line items are detailed in Note 3 io the consolidated
financial statements. Extracts from the consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated income

statement and consolidated statement of cash flows are as follows:

Key consalidaied stztement of financial position information

Praperty, plant and equipment
Invesiment properties
Development work in progress
Trade 2nd other receivables
Cash and bank balances
Financing™

Met assets (lotal assets less 1otal liabilities)

Key consolidated income statement information

Revenue
BDirect costs
Selling and marketing expenses
General and adeninistrative expenses:
Staff costs
Depreciation and amaostisation
Provisions for impairments/write-offs/canceliations/onerous contracts
Orher general and adminisirative expenses
Gain on assets held for sale
Gain an business combination
Fair value toss on investment properties
Share of {losses)profils from associates and joint ventures
Impairment toss on avaitable-for-sale financial assets
Finance income
Finznece costs
Other income

Key cansalidated cash flow statement information

Met cash generated from operating activities
Met cash used in investing activities
Met cash used in financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Short term deposits and resiricted balances wiih banks

Cash and bank balances ot the end of the year

2013
AED million

3,257
12,526
4,31t
13,359
4,294
§3,786
16,648

2013
AED million

5,380
(3,616)
(12}

(250)
(389)
(1,135)
(158)
3
2,591
{341}
(16}

186
(727)

630

2,225

2013
AEBD millicn

4,417
(603}
(2,746)

1078
2,216

4,294

2012
AED million

3,632
6,078
4,223
13,337
2,260
14,014
8,180

2012
AED miflion

11,404
(8,166)
{11)

(198}
(435)
{936)
{101)

{1?6}
i21
{2}

223
(835)
447

§,341}

2012
AED million

4,472
(1,399
(5,435}

1,009
1,251

2,260

wy Financing is defined as outstanding balances from all borrowings and canveriible and non-comvertible bond

and Sukuk




ALDAR PROPERTIES PISC 3
FINANCIAL REVIEYW {continued)

HIGHLIGHTS:

2013 was a vear of significant change for Aldar Properties PISC {henceforth referred to as “Aldar”} with
the completion of the merger with Soroul Real Estate PISC (henceforth referred to as “Sorouh™) that
created a strong platform for sustainable growth and | am pleased that through this transformational
period we are reporting a strong set of resefts. Net profit *attributable to Owners of the Company” was
AED 2.25 billion, an increase of 68% on full year resulis for 2012, Earnings per share for 2013 were 34
fils per share compared to 30 fils per share for 2012.

The Group financial results have been significantly transformed by the merger with Sorouh. The results
reflect our continued program of unit and land deliveries to our customers including the Government of
Abu Dhabi and strong growth in our recurring revenue base both of which we expect to continue into
2014, Revenues for 2013 were AED 5.38 hillion following a strong vear of project deliveries in 2012
when revenues were AED 11.40 billion. Gross profit for 2013 is AED 1.76 billion compared to
AED 3.24 billion in 2012. During the year Aldar and Sorouh completed their merger. The merger was
structured as an acquisition of Sorouh by Aldar and as such during the second quarter Aldar recarded
AED 2.59 billion *Gain on business combination® reflecting the difference between the consideration
tendered for Sorouh’s shares and the fair value of the net assets acquired. The Group reviewed the value
of all its assets over the course of the year, in particular at the time of the merger, and reflected AED 1.5
billion of Impairments and Fair Value losses during the year,

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 27 June 2013, the Company issued shares as consideration for the acquisition of the net assets of
Sarouh to Sorouh’s shareholders in the ratio of 1.288 new shares in the Company for each share held in
Sorouh. The transaction was approved in the shareholders’ meeting on 3 March 2013, The financial
impact of this acquisition that was completed pursuant to UAE Commercial Companies Law Article
276{1) has bzen detailed in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statemeants.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s consolidated net profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 is AED 2,225 million
compared 10 AED 1,341 million for the year 2012. Revenue for the 12 months ended 31 December 2013
was AED 5,380 million, as compared to AED 11,404 million for the year 2012. Recurring revenues from
investment properties and other operational businesses amounted to AED 1,830 million during the year
compared to AED 1,438 million in the year 2012. This increase was primarily due to the inchision of
additional recurring revenue during the year as a result of business combination and improved
performance of the Group’s operational assets including investment properties, operative villages, hotels
and schools. The net assets of the Group grew by 104% during the year compared to 31 December 2012,
due primarily to the issuance of new shares as consideration pursuant to the business combination with
Sorouh, and the conversion of convertible bonds, and the prefit for the year.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had AED 3,156 million available cash and AED 4,004 million
available undrawn facility.

OPERATIONAL ACHIEVEMENTS

e The Group recognised revenue on 1,154 residentizl units and 409,200 sqm of land plots.

e Two towers at the 3,533 unit “The Gate Towers® project on Reem Island were completed during the
fourth quarier and revenue was recognised on 199 unils that were handed over 1o customers.

e Agreement was reached with Arablec Holding PISC for the long-term lease of all of the offices at
World Trade Center Abu Dhabi, which Aldar manages on behalf of the Government of Abu Dhabi.



ALDAR PROPERTIES PJSC 4
FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

OPERATIONAL ACHIEVEMENTS (CONTINUED)

* At Al Rayyana, the [,537 unit development located in Khalifa City A, 287 unils were successfully
occupied during the year and the related revenue was recognised in the consolidated income
statemenl.

*  The external debt ratings of the Group were increased to Bal (positive outlook) from Ba3 and BB
from B+ by Moody’s and Standard and Poor's respectively during the year reflecting the improved
financial position and clear strategy of the Group post-merger.

ANALYSIS OF INCOME STATEMENT

Revonue

The Group’s revenue was generated primarily from the sale of land and completed properties, reatal
income from investment properties and income from its operational businesses. The Group eamed
AED 3,550 millzon of revenues from property development activities, mainfy from the sale of land plots,
completed properties and construction. The decrease compared to 2012 was primarily due to
exceptionally high revenues from residential unils booked in 2012 following handovers at our largest
residential development of Raha Beach.

The recurring revenue from the Group’s investment propertics, operative villages and other operational
businesses amounted to AED 1,830 million for the period compared to AED 1,438 million for the year
2012. This increase is driven by the inclusion of recurring revenue acquired under business combination
and higher occupancy in our Investment Properiies Portfolie, Hotels and Operative Villages.

Direet cosis

For the 12 months ended 31 December 2813, direct costs include AED 2,298 million for the cost of fand
and properties sold, AED 24 million as project management costs and AED 1,294 million for the costs
of operational business, investment properties and construction. The overall decrease in direct costs is in
line with the decrease in revenue.

Gencral and administrative expenses (excluding depreciation, ariortisation and impairments)

General and administralive expenses {excluding depreciation, amortisation and impairments) were higher
compared to the corresponding period mainly becaise the comparative numbers for 2012 does not
include the expenses relating to the acquired business.

Finance incomefcosts

The Group’s finance inceme comprises interest on bank deposits, profit on Islamic deposits and finance
incorie from finance leases. The Group’s finance cosis comprise interest payments on its external
financing and related hedging costs.

The Group had net finance costs of AED 541 million compared to net finance costs of AED 612 million
for the year 2012, The decrease is in line with both a reduction in the Group’s borrowings and cost of
debt but was offset marginally by cessation in capitalization of interest on completed projects.
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ALDAR PROPERTIES PJSC
FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Investment propertics

Investment properties increased compared to 31 December 2012 due to ongoing work on investment
properties under development, mainly Yas Mall, and the addition of Sorouh’s investment properties as a
result of the business combination offsel by fair value losses during the year.

Development worle in progress

Development work in progress as at 31 December 2013 increased compared to 31 December 2012
mainly due to the addition of Sorouh’s development work in progress as a resull of the business
combination, offset by project costs impaired, the transfer of apartments at The Gate Towers, Al Bateen
Vilias and Apartments and Al Ward Villas to invenlories upon completion, and disposals.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s receivables increased compared to the balance at 31 December 2012 mainly due to the
addition of Soroub’s receivables as a result of the business combination, offset by collections from the
Government of Abu Dhabi.

Financing

The Group’s external financing at 31 December 2013 decreased marginally 1o AED 13,786 million
compared to AED 14,014 million as at 31 December 2012, Major movements in exiernal debts over the
year inecluded the issuance of a new USD 750 million Sukuk on 03 December 2013, offset by the
repayment of foans inchuding the repayment of AED 3.75 billion Sukuk on 17 June 2013 and AED 4.3
billion in bank loans dering December 2013,

ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS

The Group had net cash inflovws of AED 4,417 million from operating activities for the 12 months ended
31 December 2013, This was mainly due to the coliection of receivables and advances received from
customers including the Government of Abo Dhabi,

The Group’s net cash outflows from investing activities for the 12 months ended 31 December 2013 are
mainly attributable to additions in investment properties, increase in bank deposits and increase in term
deposits with original maturities above hrec months. This has been offset by cash acquired as a result of
the business combination.

Net cash outflows from financing activities for the period are mainly due to net repayment of exisling
borrowings, related finance costs and profit distribution on [slamic bonds, and the payment of dividends
offset by new financing raised during the year.

Greg Fewer
Chief Financial Officer
1 February 2014
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INDEPENBDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

Fo the Sharchoiders of
Aldar Properties PISC
Abu Dhabi, UAE.

Repert on the consalidated financinl statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Aldar Properties PISC (“the
Company™} and its subsidiaries (together *the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial siatements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
siatements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
a5 management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial stalements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on cur audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial stalements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
incleding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial stalements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the enlity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting estimates made by
management, a5 well as evaluating the overal! presentation of the consolidated financial stalements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinian.

Rsmrbey of Delotte Toucha Tobmatsy Limated



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT {(eontinued)

Cpinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial
position of the Group as of 31 December 2013, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
vear then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Also, in our opinion, proper books of account are maintained by the Company, and the financial information
included in the Board of Directors’ report related to the consolidated financial staterments is in agreement with
the books of account. We have obtained all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary for the purpose of our audit. According to the information available to us, there were no
contraventions of the UAE Federal Commercial Companies Law No. (8) of 1984 (as amended) or the
Articles of Association of the Company which might have a material effect on the financial position of
the Company or on the results of its operations for the year.

Deloitte & Touche (M.E)

J

Mutasemn M. Dajani
Registration Number 726
{1 February 2014




ALDAR PROPERTIES PJSC

Consolidated statement of financial poesition

as at 31 December 2413

ASSETS

Non-corrent assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Investment properties

Investment in associates and joint ventures
Available-for-sale financial assets

Trade and other receivables

Totat non-current asseis

Current asseis

ELand held-for-sale
Development work in progress
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank bzlances

Total current assels

Tolal assels

Notes

= Mo DO -y onoLh

11
12
10
13

2013
AED'00

3,256,809
2,713
12,025,981
1,048,513
102,642
3,101,444

19,538,102

1,782,762
4,310,218
3,514,452
10,287,732
4,294,081

24,183,945

43,718,047

The accompanying notes form an integrat part of these consolidated financial statements.

2012
AED 000

3,632,232
3,017
6,078,113
716,067
151,461
5,785,829

16,366,719

42227129
1,640,300
7,551,186
2,259,773

15,673,988

32,040,707



ALDAR PROPERTIES PJSC

Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2013 (continued)

EQUITY AND LIABILTTIES
Capital and reserves

Share capital

Share premium

Share issuance costs, net
Statutory reserve

Hedging reserve

Fair valug reserve

Accumulated losses

Attributable 1o equity holders of the pareni company
Won-controtling interest

Toial equity

Mon-current fiabilities
Non-convertible bonds and Sukuk
Bomrowings

Retentions payable

Provision for end of service benefit
Security deposits

Other financial labilities

Total non-current [iabilities

Current lishilities

Convertible bonds — liability component
Non-convertible bonds and Sukuk
Borrowings

Retentions payable

Advances from cusiomers

Trade and other payables

Other financial Habilities

Total current Habilities
Totizl liabilities

Toial equity and liabilities

Ja——

Abubaker Seddig Al Khoori
Chairman 1

Notes

14
15
14
16

18
1%

20

17
18
19

21
22

2013
AEDFG00

7,862,630
10,412,278

{79,920)
1,235,014

(48,296)
8,301

(3,015,384}

16,374,613
273,330

16,647,959

2,744,793
2,964,749
130,842
96,201
1,998
33,033

5,972,316

4,044,771
3,431,542
1,300,727
3,144,168
8,583,052

3,512

21,167,772
27,080,088

43,728,047

]

g S

2012
AED’0G0

1,085,129
7,984,873
(79,920)
1,010,385
(59,896)
7,088

{4,768,1532)

8,179,507

B 179,507

4,587,469
3,541,261
508,874
53,413
1,998
35378

8,732,393

702,588
3,795,049
1,387,954

651,879
2,129,549
6,461,788

15,128,807
23,861,200

32,040,707

Greg Fewer

, Chief Financial Officer
The accompanying noies form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



ALDAR PROPERTIES PJSC

Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Revenie
Direct costs

Gross profit
Selling and marketing expenses

General and administrative expenses:

Staff costs

Depreciation and amaortisation

Provisions, impairments and write downs

Reversal of provision of receivables from/ investment in
associates and joint ventures

Reversal of provision of amounts
due from a refated party

{ther general and adminisirative expenses

Share of (loss) profit from associates and joint ventures
Gain on assets held for sale

Gain on business combination

Fair value loss on investment properties

Impainment loss on available-for-sale financial assets
Finance income

Finance cosis

Other income

Profit for the year
Attributable {2

Ovwrers of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings pershare

Basic and diluted

The accompanying notes form an integral part of (hese consolidated financial statements.

Notes

13
24

23

16

27

10.5

10.6

o

37

28
29
30

3

10
2013 2012
AED’000 AED’000
5379757 11,403,921
(3,615,700)  (8,166,330)
1,764,057 3,237,591
{12,170) (11,351)
(249,818) {197,875)
(309,188) (434,587)
(1,135997)  (1,187,102)
. 50,000
- 201,025
(158,051) {(100,544)
(16,475) 121,489
3,018 .
2,590,782 -
(340,544) (169,946)
- {2,139)
186,237 222,989
(727,020} (835,382)
630,364 446,490
2,225,195 1,340,658
2,246,294 1,340,658
(21,099) -
2,225,195 1,340,658

AED per share

.34

0.30




ALDAR PROPERTIES PJSC 11

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the vear ended 31 December 2013

Naote 2013 2012

AED’CO0D AED 000

Prafit far the yenr 2,235,195 1,340,658

{Hher comprehensive income/(loss)

Crain/({loss) on fair valuation of available-for-sale financial assets 1,213 (27,542)

Hedging (loss)/gain recognised in profit or loss {1,525} 1,023

Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 13,125 (7.,%51)

Directors’ remuneration A3 - (16,0009

12,513 (50,470)

Total comprehensive income for the vear 2,238,008 1,290,188
Total comprehensive income attributable to :

Crwners of the Company 2,259,107 1,290,138

Non-controlling interest {21,059 -

2,238,008 1,290,138

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consofidated financial statements.
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ALDAR PROPERTIES PJISC

Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance income
Dividend income
Finance cosls
Amortisation of prepaid finance costs
Impairment loss of available-for-sale financial assels
Fair value loss on investment propertics
Share of loss/(profit} from associales and joint ventures
Release of provision for onerous contracts
{mpairmentisfwrite-offs on projects
Provision for impairment of trade receivables/cancellations
Reversal of provision for impairment of amounts
due from a related party
Reversal of provision for impairment of receivables from investment in
associales and joint ventures
Provision for impaimment of gross amounts dite from construction
contracts
Reversal of unrealised gain on sale of asset to a joint venture
{ain on business combination
Gain on disposal of an associale
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Provision for end of service benefit, net

Operating eash flosws hefore changes in working capital

Changes in working capital:

Decrease/{increase) in trade and other receivables
{Increase)/decrease in development work in progress
Decrease in invenlories

Decrease in reientions payable

Decrease in advances from customers
Increase/{decrease) i trade and other payables

Net cash generated from operaling activities

13

2013 2012
AED*000 AED 000
2,225,195 1,340,658

309,188 434,587
(186,237) (222,989)
(4,939) (4,235)
680,365 800,045
46,655 35,337
. 2,139
340,544 169,946
16,475 (121,489)
(17,000) -
1,809,451 1,171,160
40,476 15,542
- (201,025)
- (50,000
86,070 -
(18,592) -
(2,590,782) -
(3,018) -
(3,455) -
(6,220) (52)
(1,489) 6,301
1,922,687 3,376,785
2,487,764 (633,029)
(363,277 741,960
1,831,746 5,902,697
(43,674) (325.537)
{1,918,966) (2,610,453)
501,169 (1,980,566}
4,417,449 4,471,857

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these conselidated financial statements.



ALDAR PROPERTIES PJSC

Consolidatedd statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 Deecmber 2013 {continued)

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Payments for purchases of intangible assels

Additions to investment properties

Paymenls for invesiment in joint ventures

Cash acquired on business combination

Paymenis for invesiment in available-Tor-sale financial assets
Proceeds from disposal of an associate

Finance income received

Dividends received

Movement in term deposits with original maturities above three months
Movement in restricted bank balances

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activitics

Repayment of non-convertible bonds

Financing raised

Repayment of borrowings

Finance costs paid

Dividends paid

Directors’ remuneration paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net inerensef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 13)

14
2013 2012
AED'000 AED'000
(37,427 (34,504)
8,655 105
(1,062) (229)
(1,199,702) (982,570)
(89,402) (150)
1,521,478 894
(£4,222) (10,484)
122,474 -
25,436 30,200
27,091 62,235
(1,070,26%) 5077
104,293 (469,071)
(602,657  (1.398,897)
{3,750,000) -
6,371,300 800,000
(4,332,154) (5,037,360}
(806,492) (981,796)
(213,114) (199,705)
(16,000) (16,000)
(2,746,460)  (5,434,861)
1,068,332 {2,361,901)
1,009,275 3,371,176
2,077,607 1,009,275

The accempanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consulidated financinl statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2013

1 General information

The establishment of Aldar Propentics PISC (“the Company™) was approved by Decision No. (16) of
2004 of the Abu Dhabi Department of Planning and Economy dated 12 October 2004. The Company’s
incorporation was declared by Ministerial Resolution No. (59) of 2005 issued by the UAE Minister of
Economy dated 23 February 2003,

The Company is domiciled in the United Arab Emirates and its registered office address is PO Box
51133, Abu Dhabi.

Tie Company’s ordinary shares are listed an the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group™) are engaged in various businesses
orimarily the development, sales, investment, construction, management and associated services for real
estate. In addition, the Group is also engaged in development, construction, management and operatien of
hotels, schools, marinas and golf courses.

On 27 June 2013, the Company issued shares as consideration for the acquisition of the net assets of
Sorouh Real Estate PISC {henceforth referred to as “Soroul™) to Sorouh’s shareholders in the ratio of
1.288 new shares in the Company for each share held in Sorouh. The transaction was approved in the
sharcholders” meeting on 3 March 2013, The impact of the acquisition on these consolidated financial
statemenis has been detailed in Note 37.

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs)
11 New and revised IFRSs applied with material effect on the consolidated financial statements

IFRS 12 is a new standard that has been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. The result of
application of this standard is discussed below.

Impact of application of [FRS 13

IFRS 13 establishes 2 single source of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad; the fair value measurement requirements in [FRS 13
apply to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which other IFRSs require
or permit fair value measurement and disclosures about fair value measurements except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based paymenl, leasing transactions that
are within (he scope of IAS |7 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value {e.g. net realizable value for tive purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for
impairment assessment purpose).

IFRS 13 defines lair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market al the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation techaigue. In addition, IFRS 13 includes
extensive diselosure requirements.

IFRS 13 requires prospective application from 1 January 2013, Other than the additional disclosures, the
application of IFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements,
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Notes to the consolidated Gnancial statenients
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

2 Application of new amd revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
feontinued)
22 New and revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the conselidated financind

statemenis

The following new and revised IFRSs have been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. The
application of these new and revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts reported for
the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements,

New and revised EFRSs Summary of reguirement
1AS 19 Emplayes Berngfies (as IAS 19 includes a namber of amendments 1o the accounting for defined
revised in 2011) benefit plans, including actuarial gains and losses that are now recognised

in other comprehensive income (OCI) and permanently excluded from
profit and loss; expected retams on plan assets that are no lenmer
recognised in profit or loss, instead, thers (s a requirement to recoznise
interest on the net defined benefit liability {asset) in profit or loss,
calculated using the discount rate uwsed to measure Lthe defined benefit
obligatien, and, unvested past service costs are now recognised in profit or
loss at the earlier of when the amendment ocours o when the related
restructuring or fermination costs are recognised.

{AS 27 Separate Financial The Standard requires that when an entity prepares separate financial

Staterents £as revised in 2811) statemernts, investments in subsidiaries, associates, and jointly controlled
entities are accounted for either at cost, or in aecordance with 1AS 39
Fingncial Instrements: Recogiition and Measurement,

The Standard slso deals with the recognition of dividends, cerain group
reorganisations and includes 2 number of disclosure requirements,

IAS 28 Investments in Associates This standard prescribes the accounting for investmenits in associates and
and Joint Ventures {as revised in sets out the requiremends for the application of the equity method when
2011) accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures,

The Standard defines ‘significanmt influence’ and provides guidance on
how the equity method of accounting is to be applied (including
exemptiens from applying the equity method in some cases). h also
prescribes how investments in asseciates and joint ventures shouid be
tested foF impairment.

Amerndments to IEFRS | First-time Amends IFRS | First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Adoption of Intermnational Financial Standards to address how a firsi-time aodopter would account for a
Reporting Standards refating to govemnment loan with a below-market rate of interest when transitioning
accounting for government loans at to FFRSs. The amendments mirmror the requirements for existing IFRS
below market interest rate preparers in relation fo the application of amendments made 1o [AS 20

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance in relation to accounting for government loans,

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Amends the disclesure requirements in IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Instruments: Disclosures refating 1o Disclosures to requoire infermation about altb recognised  financial
offsetting financial assets and instruments that are set off in zccordance with paraeraph 42 of 1AS 12

linbtlities Financial Instruments: Preserdation.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year cndeid 31 December 2613 {(continued)

1

{conlinucd)

Fud
2

siatcments {eontinued)

MNew and revised [FRSs

IFRS v Consolidated Financial
Statements

IFRS 11 Joint Armangements

IFRES 12 Disclasure of Interests in
Othier Enticies

Aonual Imprevements 2909 — 2011
Crefe covering amendments to
IFRS 1. [AS 1, 1AS 16, 1AS 32 and
IAS 34

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the
Praducrion Phase of v Surface Mine

Amendments to 1AS | Presentation
of Financial Statements

Application of new and revised Iniernational Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs)

MNew and revised IFRSs applicd with no material effect on the consolidated financial

Summary of reqeirement

The Sandard identifies the principles of control, determines how 1o
identify whether an investor controls an investee and therefore must
consalidate the investee, and sets out the principles for the preparation of
consolidated financiat statements.

The Standard introduces a single consolidation model for all entities based
on control, imespective of the nature of the jnvestee {f.e. whether an entity
is controlled throush voting rights of investors or through ether
contractudi areangements as is commoen inCspecial purpose entities™)

Replaces 1AS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. Requires a party to a joint
amangement to determine the type of joint amengement in which it is
involved by assessing its rights and obligations and then account for those
rights and obligations in accordance with that type of joint arrangement.

Requires the extensive disctosure of information that enables users of
financiat siatements to evaluzte the nature of, and risks associated with,
interests in vther entities and the effects of those interests on its financial
position, financial performance and cash flows.

Makes amendments to the following standards: 1FRS | — Permit the
repeated application of IFRS 1, bomowing cosis on cerdain gualifying
assets, 1AS 1 — Clarification of the requirements for comparative
informatien, IAS 16 — Classification of servicing equipment, 1AS 32 —
Clarify that tax cffect of a distribution to holders of equity instruments
should be accounted for in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes, IAS 34
— Clarify interim reporting of segment infornation for telal assets in order
to enhance consistency with the reguirements in IFRS 3 {Iperafing
Segments,

Clarifies the requirements for accounting for stripping costs associated
wilh waste removal in surface mining, incleding when production
stripping costs should be recognised as an asset, hosw the asset is initially
recognised, and subsequent measarement.

The amendments reguire items of other comprehensive income to be
grouped into two categories in the other comprehensive income section:
{z} items that will not be reclossified subsequently to profit or toss and (b)
items that may be reclassified subsequently fo profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. The amendments have been applied retrespectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive income has
been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentiened
presentation changes, the application of the amendments 1o [AS 1 does not
result in any impact on profit or fess, ether comprehensive income and
totat comprehensive income.
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2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standacds (IFRSs)

{continued)

2.2 New amd revised EFRSs applied with no materint effect on the consolidated financiak

statements (continued)

Mew and revised IFRSs Semmsary of requirement

Amendments to IFRS 10
Consofidated Financial
Stafements, IFRS 11 Joins
Arrangememts and IFRS 12
Disclosure of Inerests in Other
Entities relating to requirements
to provide comparative
information

2.3 MNew and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The amendmenis provide additional transition relief in by limiting
the requirement to provide adjusted comparative information to
only the preceding comparative period. Alse, amendments to IFRS
11 and {FRS 12 eliminate the requirement to provide comparative
information for periods prior to the immediately preceding period.

The Group has not vet applied the following new and revised [FRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

New and revised IFRRSs

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instriments: Presentation relating
to offsetting financial assets and hiabilities

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS
12 Disclosnre of Interests in Other Entifies and IAS 27 Separate
Financial Statements relating to investment entities and exemplion of
consolidation of particular subsidiaries

Amendments to IAS 36 fmpairment of Asseis relating to recoverable
amount disclosares for non-financial assets

Amendments to IAS 39 Financial instrionents — Recognition and
Measurement amendments for novations of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting

IFRIC 21 — Levies
Annual improvements 2018-2012 covering amendments to IFRS 2,
IFRS 3, IFRS 8, [FRS 13, IAS 16, IAS 24 and 1AS 38

Annual improvemnents 2011-2013 covering amendments to IFRS 1,
IFRS 3, IFRS 13 and EAS 40

Amendment to IAS 19 Emplovee Benefits relating to defined benefit
plans and employee contributions

IFRS 9 Fiaanciaf msirintents (as revised in 20107

Effective for
annual periods
heginning on_or after

1 January 2014

[ January 2014

b January 2014

I January 2014

i January 2014
{ July 2814

1 July 2014
1 July 2014

No earlier than annual periods
beginning on or after
1 Janary 2017
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Notes to the consolidated financial sfatements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 {continued)

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
{continued)
2.3 New and revised EFRSs in issue but not vet effective {continoed)

Effective Tor
annuat periods

MNew and revised JFRSs berinning on or afler

Amendment to WFRS 7 Financiad fnstriments: Diselosures refating to When IFRS 9 is first applied
transition to [FRS 9 {or otherwise when IFRS 9 is first applied)

RS 14 Regnlenory Deferral Accounts i January 2016

Management anticipates that the adoption of these IFRSs in future periods will have ne material impact
on the consclidated financial statements of the Group in the period of initiat application.

3 Summary of signiflicant acconnting policies

3.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (JFRS).

3.2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on (he historical cost basis except for the
revafuation of investment properties and certain financial instruments. The principal accounting policies

are set out below,

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, UAE Dirhams {(AED) is the functional and the
presentation currency of the Groop.

3.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial slatements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
{including structured entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

* s power over the investee;
s isexposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
= has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are chinges to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Motes to the consolidkated financinl statements
for the year ended 31 December 2(H3 (continued)

3 Summary of significant aceounting policies (continucd)
3.3 Basis ol consolidation (continucd)

When the Company has less than & majority of the voting rights of an inveslee, it has power over the
investee when the voling rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Company's voting rights in an investee are sufficieat to give it power, including:

2 the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the ather vote holders;

« potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
» rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

¢ any additionai facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obfains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the vear are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
pther comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to conirol the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and exch component of other comprehensive income are attributed 1o the owners of the
Company and to the non-controtling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is atributed o
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controdling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adiustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into fine with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and linbilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to {ransactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Ownership Country of

Name of subsidiary interest incorporation Principal zetivity

Al Raha Gardens Property LLC 0% UAE Development, sale and
management of properiies

AlbJimi Mall LLC 100% UAE Development and management of
investment property

Addar Real Estate Services LLC 0% UAE Property development

Al Raha Infrastrecture Company LLC 100% UAE Development, sale and
management of properties

Addar Academies LLC 100% UAE Investment in, and management

of entities providing educational
services
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 {continued)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.3 Basis of consolidation {continued)

Ownership Country of
Name of snbsidiary interest incorporation Principal activity

Aldar Facilities Manogement LLC F00%% UAE Investment in, and management
of, entities providing facilities
management services

Aldar Commercial Property E00% UAE Ownership, management and
Bevelopments LLC develomnent of buildings
Farah Leisure Parks Management LLC* H08% LiAE Supervise, manage and operate
theme parks
Aldar Hotels and Hospitality LLC 100% UAE Investment in, and management

of, entities providing hotels and
hospitality services

Aldar Marinas LLC 100% UAE Muanaging and operating marinas,
sports ¢clubs and marine
machinery

Abu Dhabi World Trade Centre LLC 100%% UAE Development and management of,

and investment in, properties and
related activities

Maree] Island Development 0% LAE Development and manapement of,
Company LLC and investment in, propedies and
related activities
Yas Marina LLC 0% UAE Ownership, development and

management of marinas and
relaled activities

Yas Yacht Club LLC 100% AE Management of yachts and
maring sports
Yas Hotef LLC 100%% LAE Cwnership, development and
management of hotels
Yas Links LLC 100% UAE Cwnership and management of
goif courses and golf clubs
Al Muna Primary School LLC 100% UAE Providing educational services
Gate Towers Shams Abu Dhabi {00% VAE Development of Gate Towers
LLC**
Sorouh Abu Dhabi Real Estate LLC** 100% UAE Act as Mudarib in accordance
with the Sukuk [ssue structure
Sorouh International Limited** F00%% UAE Holding company of foreign
entities
Sorouh International Development HOO%% LUAE Development of properties and
Limited** real estale
Sorcul Intemational Moroceo 100% UAE Pevelopment of properties and

Limited*?* real estate
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Nates to the conselidated financial statements
fer the year ended 31 December 2013 (continacd)
3 Semmary of sigrificant accounting policies (confinued}
3.3 Basis of consolidation {continued)
Cwnership Country of
Name of subsidizry interest incorporation Principal activity
Lulu Island for Project Development 180% LAE Development of properties and
LLC** real estate
Ttlal Liwa Real Estale Investing 1680% UAE Property, rental and management
LLC**
Al Seih Real Estate Managemient 0].4% UAE danagement and leasing of real
LLC* estate; real estate projects
invesiment
Seih Sdeirah Real Estate LLC** ol .4% UAE Property rental and management;
real estote projects investment
Soroub Egypt for investment and 2% Esvpi Envesiment in tourism activity
Tourism Development SAE*™*
Khidmah LLC** 60%% UAE Management and leasing of real
gsiale
Pivat Engineering & General 60%; UAE Engineering and general
Contracting Co. (WILLY** construction works

* Disposed of during the year
*#* Qubsidiaries acquired through business combination {Mote 37)

3.4 Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the business
combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair volues {at the date of exchonge) of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assels, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 Business
Combinations are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets {or
disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 3 Mon-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on gequisition is recognised os an asset and initiafly measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, labilities and eontingent liabilities recognised.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity's net assets in the event of liguidation may be inittally measured either at fair value or
at the non-controlting interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's
identiftable net assets.
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Notes to the conselidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 {continued)

3 Summary of significant sccounting policies {cantioued)
34 Business combinations {vontinued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acguisition date (i.2. the date when the Group cbiains control)
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, Amounts arising from interesis in the
acqguiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for o business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reporls provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement peried, or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circmstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

3.5 Investmentis in associates and joint ventores

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate ia the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control ar joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists enly when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incarporated in these condensed
conselidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is
classified as held for sale, in which case it 15 accounted for under IFRS 5 Non-current Assefs Helel for
Sarde and Discontined Operations. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised are carmied in the condensed consolidated statement of financial positien at
cost and as adjusted thereafier to recognise for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the asseciate and joint venture,

Losses of an associate or joint venture in excess of the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture
{which imcludes any long term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
associate or joint venture) are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal er
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

Where an entity in ithe Group transacis with an associate or joint venture of the Group, profits and losses
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate or joint venture,
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Notes to the consolidated finzncial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
L Invesiment in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the armangement
have rights to the asseis, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions aboui the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations, the Group as a joint operator
recognises in relation to its interest in a joint operation:

* its assels, including its share of any assets held jointly;

* its finbilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

* its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation;

* its share of the revenue from the sale of the cutput by the joint operation; and

+ its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.
The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its interest in a joint
operation in accordance with IFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which & group entity is a joint operator {(such as a
sale or contribution of assets), the Group is considered conducting the transaction with other parties to
the joint operation and profits and losses resulting from the transactions are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of other parties' interests in the joint operation,

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a
purchase of assets), the Group does not recognise its share of the gains and losses until it resells those
assets to a third party.

3.7 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised in the consolidated income statement at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivabie as follows:

Sale of propetties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised when all of the following conditions have been
satisfied:

» the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the property;
» the Group retains neither continuing manageriai involvement to the degree usvally associated with
ownership nor effective contred over the propenty sold;
» tiie amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that the econamic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group: and
+ the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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Naotes to the conselidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.7 Revenue recognition {continued)

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction conlract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recopnised
by reference to the siage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period,
measured based on the prepertion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the
estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of completion.
Variations in contract work, claims and incentive paymenis are included to the extent that the amount can
be measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Changes in estimales used in the determination of the amount of revenue and expenses are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the change is made.

Where the cutcome of & construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total coniract costs will exceed tolal contract revenue, the expected [oss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Costs of contracts include all direct costs of labour, materials, depreciation of property, plant and
cquipment and costs of subcontracted works, plus an approprizte proportion of construction overheads
and general and administrative expenses of the year, which are allocated to construction contracts in
progress during the year.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress
bitlings, the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracls where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the
surplus is shown as the amounts due to customers for contract work. Amounts received before the related
work is performed are included in the statement of financial position, as a liability, as advances received.
Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by the customer are inchided in the stalement of
financial position under trade and other receivabfes.

Income from investment propertics

Rental income
The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is deseribed in 3.8 below,

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenams
Income arising from expenses recharged to tenanls is recognised in the period in which the expense can
be contractually recovered. Service charges and other such receipts are included gross of the related costs
in revenue as the Group acts as principal in this respect.
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Nutes to the consclidated financiat statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013 {continued)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.7 Revenue recognition {continced)

Income from hotels

Income from hotels comprises revenue from rooms, food and beverages and other associated services
provided, and is recognised when the goods are sold or services are rendered.

Income from feisure businesses

Income from leisure businesses comprises revenue from goods sold and services provided at marinas and
golf course, ond is recognised when the goods are sold or services are rendered.

Income from schoots

Registration fee is recognised as income when it is received. Tuition fee income 15 recognised on a
monthly basis over the period of instruction. Tuition fees received in advance are recorded as deferred
income.

DHvidend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment has been
established.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and effective interest
rate applicable.

3.8 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases,

Tiie Group as bessar

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s
get investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment ouistanding in respect of the leases.

Renlal income fram operating leases is recopnised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Inittal direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the [ease term.
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Notes to the consolidlated financinl siatements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued}

3 Summary of signifieant accounting policies (continued)
3.8 Leasing {continoed)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initinlly recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position as a
tinance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apporiioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease abligation so as to
aclifeve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly to profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capilalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs {see Nole 3,10 below),

Operating lease payments are recopnised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a Hability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recopnised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is mare represenlative of the time
pattern inn which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

39 Foreion currencies

Transactions in currencies other than AED (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, menetary ilems
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in 2 foreign currency are not retransiated.

3.13  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, canstruction or production of qualifyving assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assels are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.

Investment income earmed on the temporary investment of specific barrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assels is deducted from the borrewing costs eligible for capitalisation,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period during which they are incurred.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
310 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
unpairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly atiributable to the acguisition of the
asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the assel's carrying ampunt or recognised as a separate assei, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that fulure economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the ftem can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance expenses
are charged to the profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the assets’ cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Years
Buiidings 20-30
Eabour camps ]
Furniture and fixtures 5
Office egquipment I-5
Compulers 3
Motor vehicles 4
Leaschold improvements 3-4

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their expected usefut lives or the term
of the relevant lease.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An asset’s carrying amount is writien down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carmying
amount is greaier than its estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset and is
recognised in the profit or loss.

3,12  Capital work in progress

Properties or assets in the course of construction for preduction, supply or adminisirative purposes, or for
purposes not vet determined, are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss, Cost includes ail
direct costs attributable to the design and construction of the property incleding related siaff costs, and
for qualifiing assets, -borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
When the assets are ready for intended use, the capital work in progress is transferred (o the appropriate
property, plant and equipment category and is depreciated in accordance with the Group's policies.
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3 Sommary of significant accounting policies {(continued)

3.13  Investment property

Invesiment property comyyrises compleled properties and properties under development. Completed
properiies are properties held to eamn rentals andfor for capital apprecintion and properties wnder
development are properties being constructed or devefoped for future use as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at cost including transaction cosis and for propertics under
development all direct costs attributable to the design and construction including related staff costs.
Subsequent to iniiial recognition, investment property is measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in the profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Upon compfetion of construction or development, a property is transferred from properties under
deveiopment to completed properties.

J3.14 MNon-current assets beld for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset {or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in ils present condition. Management must be commiited to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recopnition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification,

Nonr-current assets {and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previcus camying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

3.15  Development work in progress

Development work in progress consists of property being developed principally for sale and is stated at
the lower of cost or net realisable valie, Cost comprises all direct costs attributable to the design and
construction of the property including direct staff costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of the business less estimated costs to complete and applicable variable selling
expenses.

J.16 Inventorics

lnventories comprise compieied properties held for sale in the ordinary course of business and other
operating inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is
calculaled using the weighted average cost method and comprises construction/acquisition costs and
ather charges incurred in bringing inventory to is present location and condition. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less all estimated selling and marketing costs to be incurred.
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3 Summary of significant 2ccounting policies {continued)

317  Intangible assels

Intangible assets acquired separately are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impainuent losses. Amortisation is charged on a straight-fine basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with effect of any changes

in estimate being accounted for on a prospsctive basis.

Competer soflware

Acquired computer sofiware licences are capilalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives which is normally a period of three to five years.

Licenses

Acquired licenses are shown at historical cost. Licenses have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amaortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of ficenses over their estimated useful lives.

3.i8  [mpairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the camying nmounts of its tangible and
intangible assels to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
unpairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impnirment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the assel belonps. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate asseis are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated o
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable ampunt is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discaunt rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less than ifs carrying
amounl, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revaiued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carryving amount of the asset {(or cash-generating
unit} is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recopnised for the asset (or cosh-generating unit} in prior vears, A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, urless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase,
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3 Summary of significant necounting policies (continued)
3.19  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired to scttle the obligation, and the nmount
can bg reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected 10 be required to settle the
obligation at the end of the reporting period, using a rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation,

Wihen some or all of the economic benefits required to settle o provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually cerdain that reimbursement will

be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably.

Onerops conkracts

Present obligations arising under anerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered (o exisi where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the abligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

3.20  Employee henefits

An acerual is made for the estimated linbility for employees' entitlement 10 annual leave and leave
passage as a resuit of services rendered by eligible employees up to the end of the year.

Provision is also made for the full amount of end of service benefit due to non-UAE national employees
in accordance with the UAL Labour Law, for their period of service up to the end of the year. The
accrual relating to annual leave and leave passage is disclosed as a current liability, while the provision
relating to end of service benefit is disclosed as a non-current lisbility.

Pension contribetions are made in respect of UAE national employees to the UAE Genera! Pension and
Social Security Autharity in accordance with the UAE Federal Law No. {2, 2000 for Pension and Social
Security. Such contributions are charged to the profit or loss during the employees' period of service.

321  Govermmesnt granis

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government gramts are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recopnises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government granis whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acguire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the usefui lives of the
related assets.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
321 Government grants (continuzed)

Governmenl grants that are receivable as compensaiion for expenses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant,
measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing
market interest rates,

Land granted by the Government of Abu Dhabi is recognised at nominal value where there is reasonable
assurance that the land will be received and the Group will comply with any attached conditions, where
applicable,

3.22 Financini asseis

Financial assets nre classified into the following specified categories: *available-for-sale’ {AFS) financial
assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. Loans and receivable include cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables, amounts due from related panties and loans and advances to third
parties.

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits held with banks (excluding deposits held
under lien) with original maturities of three months or less.

AFS financial assels

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an
investment is under a contrzet whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly atiributable
transaction casls,

AFS investmenis are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value unless the later cannot be
refiably measured. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve in equity, with the
exception of impairment losses, interest calcubated using effective interest method and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary assets, which ire recognised in profit or loss.

Where the AFS investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumuiative
gains or losses previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to the profit
or loss,

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends 15 established.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
322 Finoncial assets {continuel)

Eoans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoled in an active market. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost, less any
impairment. Interest income is recopnised by applying the effective interest rate, except for shori-term
receivables when the recognilion of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of hnancial gssets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of past event, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment hove been afiecied.

'or unguoted shares classified as AFS at cost, objective evidence of impairment could include:

» significant financial difficulky of the issuer or counterparty; or
» default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
# it becoming probable that the counterparty will enter bankrupicy or financial re-organisation.

For certain calegories of finoncial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
tmpaired individually are assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a porifolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period,
as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
assel’s original effective interest raie,

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off azainst the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously writien off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
toss,

With the exception of AFS equity instraments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event cccurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recopnised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the camying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previously recognised through profit or loss are

not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised directly in other comprehiensive income.
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3 Summary of signilicant accounting policies (continued)
3.22  Financial assets (continued)

Berecopnitjion of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights o the cash flows from the
asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantiaily all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset 10 another entily. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantiatly all the risks and rewards
of ewnership and continues to conirol the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. i the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of 3 transfereed financial asset, the Group comtinues to recognise the
financial assei.

3.23  Financial liabilities and eguity instruments issued by the Group

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as egquity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual armangement.

Equily instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity afier
deducting ali of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Compound instruments

The component parts of compound instruments issued by the Group are classified separateiy as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contraciual arrangement. At the date of
issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for a
similar non-convertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a linbility on an amortised cost basis
using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity
date. The equity component is determined by deducting the amount of the tiability component from the
fair vaive of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity and is not
subsequently remeasured.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilites, including borrowings, are initialiy measured at fair value, net of transaciion
costs,

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
methad, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis, except for short-term payables
when recognition of interest would be immaterial.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
ullocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effeciive interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments throegh the expected life of the financial fiability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.23  Finangial lisbilities and equity instrumenis issued by the Group {continueci)

Prerecosnition of (nancial Labilities

The Group derecognises financial labilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

3.24 Derivative finaneial instrumenis

The Group enters inlo derivative financial instnuments to manage its exposure to interest rate risk,
including interest rate swaps.

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value at contract date, and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Al derivatives are carried at their fair
values as assels where the fair values are positive and as liabilities where the fair values are negative. A
derivalive is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the
tnstrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months. Other
derivatives are presented as current assets or cumrent liabilities.

Fair values of the derivatives are carried out by independent valuers by reference to quoted market
prices, discounted cash flew models and recognised pricing models as appropriate.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not gualify for hedge accounting are
recognised in profit or loss as they arise. Derivative financial instruments that de not qualify for hedge
accounting are classified as held for trading derivatives.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Group designates certain derivatives into bwo types of hedge
categories: {a} foir value hedges which hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised
asset or liability; and (b) cash fiow hedges which hedge exposure to variability in cash flows that are
either atiributable to a particular risk associated wilh a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable
forecasted transaction that will affect future reported net income.

Hedge acepunting

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, it is required that the hedge should be expecled to be highly
efiective, 1.e. the changes in fair value or cosh flows of the hedeing instrument should effectively offset
corresponding changes in the hedged item and the effectiveness can be reliably measured. At inception of the
hedge, the Group docaments its risk management abjective and sirategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions, including the identification of the hedging instrument, the related hedged item, the nature of
risk being hedged, and how the Group will assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship.
Subsequently, the hedge is required to be assessed and determined to be an effective hedge on an ongoing
hasis.

Note 353.5(b} sets out details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes.

Movements in the hedging reserve in equity are also detailed in the consolidated statement of changes in
cquity.
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K] Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.24  Berivative linancial instruments (continued)

Fair vaklue hedpes

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are desizgnated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded
m profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that are
atiribulable to the hedged risk.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Growp revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The
adjustment (o the carrying amount of the hedged itern arising from the hedged risk is amortised to the
profit of loss from that date.

Cash flow hedues

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or foss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss,

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve in
equity are recycled in profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss, in
the same line of the profit or loss as the recognised hedged ilem. However, when the forecast transaction
that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-firancial liability, the gains and
losses previously accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.

Interest rale caps are measured at fair value, with changes in time value recognised in the same line of the
profit or loss as the recognised hedged item. Changes in intrinsic value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulaled in hedging reserve in equity.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedping relationship, the hedging
mstrurnent expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, Any
cumulative gain or loss accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the
forecast fransaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss, When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to oceur, the cumulative gain or loss that was deferred in equity is recognised immediately in
profit or loss,
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4 Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

While applying the accounting policies as stated in Note 3, management of the Group has made certain
judpments, estimates and assumptions that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revision to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period of the revision in which the estimate is revised if the revision

affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

4.1 Critical judgments in npplyving aecounting policies

Significant judpments made by management that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and {iabilities within the next financial vear are:

Classificalion of leases

The Group. as a lessor, has entered into long-term lease arrangements for plots of land with entities
outside the Guif Cooperation Counci! {non-GCC entities) whereby the lease term under each lease is
valid for a period of 99 years renewable at the option of the Jessees for an indefinite duration.

In the process of determining whether these arrangements represent operating ieases or finance leases,
the Group’s management has made various judements. In making its judpments, the Group's
management considered the terms and conditions of the lease agreements and the requirements of [AS 17
Leases, including the Basis for Conclusions on [AS 17 provided by the International Accounting
Standards Board and related guidance, to determine whether significant risks and rewards associated with
the {and in accordance with exch lease tenm would have been transferred to the lessees despite there
being no ransfers of title. The Group evaluated the transfer of risks and rewards before and after entering
into the lease arrangements, and has obtained a legal opinion from independent lepal advisors.
Management has determined that in the lease arrangements referred to above, the Group transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 10 the lessees with practical ability for the lessees o
exercise unilateratly all rights on the plots of land. Accordingly, management is satisfied that these
arrangements represent finance leases.

Classification of properties

In the process of classifying properties, management has made various judgments. Judgment is needed to
determine whether a property qualifies as an investment property, property, plant and equipment and/or
property held for resale. The Group develops criteria so that it can exercise that judzment consistently in
accordance with the definitions of investment property, property, plant and equipment and property held
for resale. In making its judgment, management considered the detailed criteria and related guidance for
the classification of properties as set out in IAS 2, 1AS 16 and 1AS 40, and in particular, the intended
usage of property as determined by the management.
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4 Critical nccounting judgnients and key sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)

4.1 Critical judgments in applying accounting policies {continued)

[etemrination of the effective date of mereer

IFRS 3 determines that the effective acquisition date in a business combination is, inter alia, the date on
which all required conditions and approvals have been substontively satisfred.

Management has determined that 15 May 2013 was the date on which al} the material conditions
associated with the merger were substantively satisfied. Management has therefore concluded that the
cifective acquisition date is 15 May 2013, Therefore, the fair value of Sorouh’s net assels was also
measured at that date and the consideration was measured at Aldar’s share price at that date (Note 37.3).

4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainey
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of asscis and liabilities within the next financial vear, are discussed below:

Estimeation of total costs of construction contracts

As described in note 3, when the outcome of 2 construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenues
and costs are recognised by reference to siage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period. In judging whether the outcome of the construction contract can be estimated retiably,
management has considered the detailed criterion for determination of such outcome as set out in [AS 11
Consfruction Cuntracts. For the purpose of estimating the stage of completion of contract activity,
management has considered the forecasts for revenue and costs related to each construction centract.
When it is estimated that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately. The management has considered the costs to be incurred based on
artlysis and forecast of construction work to be executed.

Iair vaiue of investment properties and investment prapertics under develooment

The fair value of investment properties is determined by independent real estate valuation experts using
recognised valuation methods. These methods comprise the Residual Value Method, and the Income
Capitalisation Method.

The Residual Value Method requires the use of estimates such as future cash flows from assets
{comprising of selling and leasing rates, future revenue streams, construction costs and associated
professional fees, and financing cost, etc.), tarveted internal rate of return and developer’s risk and
targeted profit. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the end of the reporting
period.

Uinder the Income Capilalisation Approach, the income receivable under existing lease agreements and
projected future rental streams are capitalised at appropriate rates to reflect the investment market
caonditions at the valuation dates,

Such estimations are based on certoin assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might materially
differ from the actual results,
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4 Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)
4,2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty({continued}

i'air value of invesiment properiies and investment properties under development ( continued}

The continuing volatility in the plobal financial svstem and in the real estate industry has contributed to
the significant reduction in transaction volumes in the UAE, Therefore, in arriving at their estimates of
market values as at 31 December 2013, the valuers have used their market knowledge and professional
judgement and have not only relied solely on historic transactional comparables. In these circumstances,
there is greater degree of uncertainty than which exists in a more active market in estimating market
values of investment property.

The key assumptions used are as follows:

Range %
Targeted intemal rate of retum P3-17
Rental vield g-11

Estimatign of net realisable vajue for inventory and development work in nrocress

Properties held for resale and properiies classified under development weork in progress are stated at lower
of cost or net realisable value (NRV), NRV is assessed with reference to sales prices, costs of completion
and advances received and market conditions exisiing at the end of the reporting period. For certain
properties, NRV is determined by the Group having taken suitable external advice and in the light of
recent market transactions, where available,

Impairment of property, plant and equinment ond capital work in prosress

Properties classified under property. plant and equipment and capital work in progress are assessed for
impairment based on the assessment of cash flows on individual cash-generating vnits when there is an
indication that those assels have suifered an impairment loss. Cash fows are determined with reference to
recent market conditions, prices existing at the end of the reporting period, contractual apreements and
estimations over the useful lives of the assels and discounted using a range of discounting rates that
reflects current market assessmenis of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. The net
present values are compared to the carrying amounts 1o assess any probable impairment.

Useful lives of property. plant and equipment and intanaible assels

Management reviews the residual values and estimated useful lives of property, piant and equipment and
intangtble assets at the end of each annual reporting period in accordance with [AS 16 and IAS 38%.
Management determined that current vear expectations de not differ from previous estimates based on its
FEVIEW,

Valualion of unguoted AFS equity investmenlts

Valuation of unquoted AFS equity investments is normally based on recent market transactions on an
arm’s tength basis, fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, expected cash tlows
discounted at current rates for similar instruments or other valuation models,
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Nutes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013 {continued)

4 Critical aecounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty {continuzed)

4.2 Key sources of estimation uncerizinty (continued)

Impairment of investments infreceivable from joint venures and associates

Management regularly reviews its investments in joint ventures and associates for indicators of
impairment. This determination of whether investments in joint ventures and associates are impaired,
entails Management’s evaluation of the specific investee’s profitability, lHquidity, solvency and ability to
generate operating cash flows from the date of acquisition and uniil the foreseenble future. The difference
between the estimated recoverable amount and the carrving value of investment and/or receivable is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss. Management is satisfied that no additional impairment is
required on its investments in associates and joint ventures {Nole 8) and it’s receivables from associates
and joint ventures (Note 10.3) in excess of amount already provided {Note 8).

Impaiment of trede and ather receivables

An estimate of the collectible amount of trade and other receivables is made when collection of the full
amount is no longer probable. This determination of whether the receivables are impaired, entails
Munagement’s evaluation of the specific credit and liquidity position of the customers and related parties
and their historical recovery rates, including discussion with the legal depariment and review of the
current economic environment. Management is satisfied that no additional impairment is regiiired on its
trade and other receivables in excess of amount already provided (Note 10.1).

Derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments measured at fair value are generally obtained by
reference fo guoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and recognised pricing modeis as
appropriate.
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ALDAR PROPERTIES PISC

Notes to the consolidated financinl statements

fur the year ended 31 December 2013 {continued)

5 Properiy, plant and equipment (continuzed}

The depreciation charge for the vear has been allocated as follows:

Projects under development
Cost of sales
General and administrative expenses

2013
AED000

6,222
307,447

313,669

20§Z
AED0GD

977

429,421

430,398

During the year, the Group carried oul a review of recoverable amounts of its property, plant and
equipment. The review led to a recognition of impairment losses of AED 235 million (2012
AED 944 million) (Note 27}, which has been recorded in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of
relevant assets has been determined on the basis of their value in use by reference to the discounted cash
flow method using discount rates of 1136 (2012: 10.5%0).

6 Intangible assels

Cost
| January 2012
Additions

E lanuary 2013

Additions
Acquired under business combination

31 December 2013

Accumulated nmortisation

i Janvary 2012

Charge for the year

I January 2043

Charge for the year

Acqguired under business cambination
31 Becemzber 2013

Carrying amouat

31 December 2033

3 December 2012

Licenses
AED0D

1,430

§,430

12

1,418

[4L8

Computer
Software
AED0DG

64,346
229

614,575

1,062
073

66,612

537,812
5,164

62,974

L7410
a1

65,317

£,295

1,399

Total
AEDRO0D

63,776
229

66,005
1,062
975
68,042
57,824
5,166
62,988
1741
600

65,329
2,713

307
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ALDAR PROPERTIES P.JSC 44

Notes to the consolidated finaneial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

7 [nvestment properties {(continued)

The Company conducted sensitivity for top 10 assels in its Investment Property Portfolio with agerepate
vitlue of AED 7.93 billion. The valuation techniques used for these asseis are Income Capitalization and
Residual Method. The sensitivity is conducted on the C apilalizaiion Rates and Rental Values.

Sensitivity to significant changes in unobservable inputs;

* A decrease in the Capitalization/Discount Rate by 10% would result in a AED 477 million or 6.0%
increase in the valuation, whilst an increase in the Capitalization/Discount Rate by 10% would result
i AED 399 million or 5.0% decrease in the valuation

* An increase in the rental rates by 10% would result in a2 AED 620 mn or 8.3% increase in the
valuation, whilst an decrease in the rental rates by 10% would result in AED 621 million or 8.3%
decrease in the valuation

There are interrelationships between the unobservable inputs which are generally determined by market
conditions. The valeation may be affected by the interrelationship befween the two noted unobservable
inputs; for example, an increase in rent may be offset by an increase in the capitalization rate, thus
resuiting in no net impact on the valuation. Similarly, an increase in rent in comjunction with a decrease in
the capilalization rate would be to amplify an increase in the value,
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ALDAR PROPERTIES PJSC 46

MNotes to the consolidated financial stafements
for the year ended 31 Decembier 2013 {continued)

3 Invesiment in associntes amd joint venlures (continued)

Latest available financial infonmation in respect of the Group’s associates is summarised below:

20§32 2012

AEDY0D AEDO00

Teal assets 4,871,059 5,310,273
Talal Liabifities {3,820,624) (3,917,655

et assels 1,050,435 LIO2 618
Group’s share of ner assets of assoctates 49,024 297,496

Total revenue 201,488 133,782
Total loss for the year {107,852) {98,330

Latest available financial information in respect of the Group®s joint ventores is summarised below:

2013 2042
AED000 AEDT000
Taotal assets 2,937,518 2,255,397
Talal tabilities {1,932,034) {1,543,174)
et assels [,0435,484 T12,223
Group’s share of net assets of joint ventures 599,489 418,571
Tedal revenue 487,706 347,863
Tatal profit for the vear 198,665 280,904
0 Available-for-sale (AFS} financial assets
2(H3 2012
AED'H AED (0
Invesunent in UAE unguoted securities 57,088 {20,675
Investment in international unquoted securities 45,554 30,786

102,642 131,461




ALDAR FROPERTIES PJSC

Notes to the consolidated finanecial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

9 Available-for-safe (AFS) financial assets (continued)

wovement during the year is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Adfditions

Acquired under business combination
Translerred to investments in associales
Fair value gain/(loss) during the year, net

Balance at the end of the year

47
2013 2012
AED000 AED 000
151,461 170,658
14,222 10,484
95,746 -
{160,000 -
1,213 (29,681)
102,642 151,461

Subject to the Group’s overall operating strategy, the Group intends to dispose of these investments in the

normal course of business if a favourable price is offered.

During the year, dividend income received from AFS financial assets amounted o AED 4.9 million

{31 December 2012: AED 4.2 mitlion).

The total impairment loss recognised in profit or loss on an AFS investment as at 31 December 2013 is

Nit (31 December 2012: AED 2.1 million).

As a result of the acquisition of Sorouh, an available-for-sale financial asset has been reclassified to an

investment in associate as detailed in Nole 8 (ii).

10 Trade and other receivables

Non-current portion
Trade receivables (Note 10,1}
Less: Provision for impairment and cancellations

Receivable lrom project finance {Note 10.3)

Receivabte from the Goveniment of Abu Dhabi (Note 10.4)
BPue from joint ventures {(Notes 10,5}

Others

2013 2012
AED*000 AED 000
407,525 6,935

(29,322) {6,935}
378,203 -
490,265 369,478
2,106,909 5,298,034
112,067 118,317
14,000 .
5,785,829

3,101,444
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Notes to the consolidated finanecial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2043 (continued)

14 Trade and other receivables

Current portion
Trade receivables (Note 10.1)
Less: Provision for impairment and cancellations

fefundable costs (Nete 10.2)

Receivable from project finance {Note 10.3)

Receivable from the Government of Abu Dhabi {Note 10.4)

Bue from joint ventures {Notes 18.5)

Giross amount due from customers an construction cenlracts
(Note 100.7)

Due rom a related party

Advances and prepayments

Accrued interest

Others

10.1 Trade receivables

48
2013 2012
AED'000 AED 000
2,592,322 561,881
(564,117) (107,884)
1,028,205 453,997
1,785,587 4,601,270
101,493 123,544
3,802,512 1,437,184
342,817 1,493
141,488 -
- 52,534
617,950 325,757
8,230 652
460,150 554,755

10,287,732 7,551,180

Trade receivables represent mainly the amounts due from sales of plots of land, properties and revenue
from construction contracts. At the end of the year, 0% of the trade receivables {31 December 2012:
44% of the trade receivables) is due from its top five customers. The Group considers these customers to
be reputable and creditworthy and is confident that this concentration of credit risk will not result in any

significant loss to the Group.

Interest is charged at 12% per annum on the outstanding past due amounts from sales of plots and

properties. No collateral is taken on trade receivabies,

Ageing of irpde receivables

Mot past due
Past due but not impaired (more than 180 days)
Past due and impaired (more than 180 days)

Taotal trade receivablies

2013 2012
AED0DG AED 000G
1,323,682 303,679
1,082,725 130,318

593,440 F14,8149

2,999,847 568,810
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Notes to the consolidated firancial siatements

for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)
iG Trade and other receivables (continued)

10,1 Trade receivables (conginued)

Movement during the year in provision for impairment and cancellations in trade receivables is as
Follows:

2013 2012

AED 000 AED000

Balance at the beginning of the year 114,319 195,202

Acquired under business combination 354,139 -

Impairment recognised during the year {Note 27} 115,718 36,410
feleased upon cancellation of sales {21,237 (116,793

Balance at the end of the vear 593,439 114,819

10.2 Refundahle costs

Refundable costs represent costs incurred on behalf of the Government of Abu Dhabi in relation with
development of infrastructure of various projects and real estate developments, These amounts will be
refunded by the relevant Government Autharities upon completion.

During the year, the Company was informed by the relevant authority that certain refundable costs would
nol be reimbursed. This has resulted in a wrile-off of AED 230,35 million {2012: AED 47.5 million} (Note
27).

1.3 Receivable from project finance
Present value of minimum

Minimum payments payments

2013 2012 2013 2012
AEDGGRD AED 0 AED00G AED GO

Amounts receivable from project finance:
Wilhin one year 107,525 126,963 IGE,493 £23,544
In the second to fifth year 348,715 293,348 245,639 209,764
After five yvears 657,188 415,445 244,626 159,714
1,113,428 837,756 591,758 493,022
Less: nnearned finance income {521,670 (344,734} - -
Preseat value of minimum payments receivable 391,758 493,022 591,758 403,022
mMon-cureent receivables 490,265 369,478
Current receivahles 101,493 £23,544

591,758 493,022
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Notes to the consolidated firancial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continned)
10 Trade and other receivables (continued)

10.4  RReceivable from the Government of Abo Dhabi

Receivable from the Government of Abu Dhabi represents the amount receivable against certain assets
sold in 2009 and 201 [and the sale of fand plots handed over during the vear,

10,5 Due from joint ventures

Non-current Current
2013 012 2013 2012
AEDE0D AED'009 AED'0CD AEDO0G
{Oross receivables 172,065 ETE 407 358,248 17,624
Less: Provision for impairment (59,918) {33,090} (16,131 {16,131y
112,067 118,317 M2117 493

HLé  Pue from a related party

In 2011, the amount dee from a related party was net of a provision for impairment amounting to
AED 281 miilion. During 2012, this amount was reversed in full, as a settlement agreement was pat in
place,

10.7 Construction coniracis

Contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period

2013 2012
AED* DG AED*0DO
Amount due from customers on construction contracls
included in trade and other receivables 141,458 -
Amount due to customers on construction contracts included
in trade and other pavables - -
141,458 -
Total contracts cost incurred plus recognised profits less
recognised losses 1o date 3,950,145 -

Less: telal progress billings to date (3,308,657) -

14F,488 -




ALDAR PROPERTIES PJSC

Notes to the consolidated finaneial siatements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

11 Development work in progress

Development work in propress represents development and consiruction costs incurred on prapertics

being constructed for sale. Movement during the vear is as follows:

2013 20tz
AED 00D AED Q00
Balance at beginning of the year 4,222,729 7133911
Acquired under business combinztion 4,565,100 -
Developments during the year 303,276 477,231
Finance cosis capitalised during the year, net 24,294 9.879
Prisposal under finance lease during the year (30L776) -
Deprectation capitalised during the year - o7T
Transfers from/{to):
Investment propertics (199.332) 823,269
Refundable cosis (22,626) (357,755
Projects completed during the year:
Transfers to invemory (3,813,034} {3,079,629)
Disposals {recognised in direct cosls) (292,076) (1,219,335
Profect costs impairmentsiwrite-offs (506,617 -
Transfer upon acquisition of a subsidiary, net - 434,181
Balance at the end of the year 4,310,918 4,222 720

All development work in progress projects are tocated in the United Arab Emirates, except for & project

in Egypt which remains in the pre-development phase.

During the year, management became aware of a building height restriction from the Government
autherity that impacts one of the Company’s projects. The restriction has a direct impact on developable
gross floor area (GFA). As a result, the Company has revised the GFA estimates, which led to an

impairment of AED 506.6 million (Note 27).

12 Inventorics
2013
AEDIGD
Compleied properties 387,584
Other operating inventories 26,568

3,514,452

22
AED 000G

1,628,214
11,386

1,640,300

During the year, inventories were written down to their net realisable value. As a result, an allowance

amounting to AED 33.4 million was recorded in the income statement (Note 27).

Completed properties in inventories are tocated in the United Arab Emirates,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Tor the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

13 Cash anid cash cquivalenis

2013 2012
AED'00D AED'QOG
Cash and bank balances 2,630,213 £.042,791
Short term deposits held with banks 1,663,868 616,982
4,294,08% 2.259.773
Short term deposits with original maturities greater than three months {1,078,103} {7,834}
Kestricted hank balances (1,138,371} £1,242.664)
2,071,607 1,009,275

During the year, the Group held amounts refated to community service charpes and secarity deposits on
behalf of the owners of units in certain buildings or communities that are managed by the Group. At the
end of the reporting period, an amount of AED 37.2 million is not included in the Group’s bank balances
and cash as it is held by the Group on behalf of third parties.

The interest rate on lerm deposits ranges between 0.25% and 3.2% {2012: 0.60% and 1.8% per annum.
Majority of the fixed deposits are placed with local banks in the United Arab Fmirates.

£4 Share capiial

Share capital comprises 7.862,629,603 (2012: 4,085,129,096) aathorised, issued and fully paid up
ordinary shares with a par value of AED t each. Share issuance costs of AED 94.9 million {31 December
2012 AED 949 million) have been presented net of share issuance fees of AED 15.0 million, within
equity.

During the year, the remaining portion of the mandatorily convertible bonds issued to Mubadala
Development Company was converted inta 396,501 shares of the Company (Note 17).

Bluring the year, the Company issued 3,381,000 shares with o fair value of AED 5,511.0 million as
censideration for the acquisition of the net assels of Serouh to the shareholders of Sorouh in the ratio of
[.288 new shares in the Company for each share held in Sorouh.

15 Share premium
Share premium amounting to AED 10,4123 million (2012: AED 7,984.9 million) represents the
following:

»  AED 3,282.3 million for the difference between the carrying amount of convertible bonds and the
par value shares issued upon conversion of convertible bonds inte shares of the Company.

*  AED 2,130.0 million against the issued shares an the acquisition of Soravh.
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Notes to the consolidated finaneial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 {continued)

16 Statutory reserve

In accordance with its Articles of Association and the UAE Federal Law No. (8} of 1934, as amended,
0% of the profit of the Company is transferred to 2 statutory reserve that is non-distributable. Transfers
to this reserve are required to be made until such time as it equals at least 50% of the paid up share capital
of the Company.

17 Convertible bonds

2013 2012

AED00D AEDDOG

Proceeds from the issue of conveniible bonds 2,300,006 2,800,000
Redemption of coavertible bonds by share issue (2,500,000% {2,106,124)

Carrying amount of Hability component after redemption - 693,876

Proiit distribution acerued up to year end - 3712

Carrying amount of liability component ar 31 BPecember - 702,588

Less: Current portion - (702,588}

Won-current partion - -

Total profit capitnlised to projects during the year 630 3,299

In March 2011, the Group issued mandatorily convertible bonds (the “convertible bends™) for a total
value of AED 2.8 billion to a related party (the “bond holder™) carrying a profit rate of 4% per annum
payable semi-annuaily. In December 2011, an amount of AED 2.1 billion of mandatory convertible
bonds was converted. The remaining convertible bonds were converted on 24 February 2013.
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ALDAR PROPERTIES ®JSC 57
Nutes to the consolidated financial stutements
for the year ended 3t December 2013 (eontinued)
1y Borrowings (continued)
The borrowings are repayable as follows:
2013 2012
AED0 AED GO0
Chrremt
Within one year 3,431,542 1,387,954
Non-curreit
In the second to fifth year 2,964,749 3,521,957
Adter filth vear - 19,384
2,964,749 3,541,261
6,396,291 4929215

‘The Group assumed through the acquisition of Scrouh (disclosed in Note 37) an AED 2.7 billion four-
year ¢lub loan facitity consisting of a term loan and revolving credit, with both conventional and Isfamic
tranches, and secured by certain assets. The facility was amended in June 2013 to reduce the margin 1o
2.45% from 4.50% and the term loan amortisation schedule was adjusted with remaining quarterly
payments scheduled from December 2813 to June 2014. The loan was prepaid in fuil in December 2013.

The Group assumed throwgh the acquisition of Sorouh (disclosed in Note 37) a loan of AED 5.9 million.
The lean was at an interest at the rate of 6 months EIBOR plus a margin of 1.25% per annum and was
repayable over 7 years. The Joan was secured by a mortgage over the villas of one of the development
prajects. The loan was paid in full in December 2013,

In November 2013, the Group signed a term loan facility from a local bank for AED 1.25 billion bearing
terest of EIBOR plus 1% margin and repavable in four equal instalments commencing from
15 December 2014. This loan is secured by assignment of Government receivables,

In November 2013, the Group signed a term loan facility from a local bank for US 750 million
(AED 2.75 billion) bearing interest of LIBOR plus 1.4 % margin and repayable in quarterly installments.
The loan is secured and as at 31 December 2013 remained undrawn.

Loan securities are in the form of martgage over plots of land, assignment of project receivables and lien
an bank deposits.

Some of the Group’s berrowings carry covenants relating to financial measures such as total debt to total
assets, net worh and interest coverage.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 {continued)

20 Provision for end of service benefit

Movement in the provision for end of service benefit is as follows:

2013 2012

AED'DG AED'QO0

Batance at the beginning of the vear 53,413 46,981

Assumed under business acquisition 44,977 -

Charge for the year (Note 26) 19,836 14,532
IPaid during the year {21,325) £ L, 100

Balance at the end of the vear %6901 33,413

21 Advances from customers
Advances from customers represent installments collected from customers for the sale of the Group's

property developments. This also includes net advances received from the Government of Abu Dhabi
{Note 333

22 Trade and other payables

2013 2012

AED0DD AED D00

Trade payables 466,194 773,859
Acerual for coniractors® costs 2,001,875 1,857,135
Accruzl for infrastructure cosis 279,606 254,802
Advances from the Government 4,078,090 2,944 834
Deferred income 360,835 53,813
Dividends pavable 78,093 22,305
Provision for anerous contracts 126,933 190,343
Deferred povermment grant 376,928 -
Other lakilities 815,298 324,697
3,583,052 6,468,788

The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the
pre-agreed credit terms,
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Notes to the consolidated financial staterenis
for the year ended 3t December 2013 {continued)

13 Revenue

Property development and sales
Income from operating businesses

24 Birect cosis

{ost of properties sold
Direct costs for operating businesses

23 Seliing and marketing expenses

Exhibilions and sponsorships
Project marketing

Corporate adventising

Others

59

2013 2012
AED'000 AED'000
3,377,357 9,965,877
2,002,400 1,438,044
5,379,757 11,403,921
2013 2012
AED'000 AED’000
2,322,348 7,216,314
1,293,352 950,016
3,615,700 8,166,330
2013 2012
AED'000 AED'000
2,824 1,807

58 1,065

9,242 8,479

16 -

12,170 11,351
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Notes to the consolidated foancial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

26 Siaff costs

Salaries, bonuses and other benefits
Stalf training and development
Post-employment benelit (Note 20)

Staff costs allocated to:
Projects under development
Direct operating costs
General and administrative expenses

27 Pravisions, impairments and write downs

Impairment of property, plant and equipment {Note 3}
Provisions of trade receivables {Note 10.1)

Write down of development work in progress {(Note 11}
Write down of inventories {Note 12)

Write-off of refundable costs (Note 10.2)

Others

60

2013 2012
AED000 ALED 000
682, F44 336,598
3,880 3,950
14,836 17,532
705,800 360,080
20,426 21,269
419,622 340,934
242,815 197 875
705,866 360,080
2013 2812
AED000 AED0DG
235,175 943,963
115,718 3o 41
506,417 -
33,448 118,472
230,536 47,529
14,503 40,728

1,135,597

1,187,102
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Notes to the consolidsted financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 {continaed)

28 Finance income

tnterest and profit income:
Istarnic deposits
Bank lxed deposits
Calt and current accounts

Crross income
Financing element eamed on receivables, net

Financing income earmned on receivables from project fimance
Other finance income

Finance income earned on financial assets, analysed by category of asset is as follows:

Loans and receivables
Cash and bank balances

24 Finance cosis

Gross costs
Less: Amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets

Recycling of hedging reserve loss

The weighted average capitalisation rate of funds borrowed is 1.48%

annum.

2013
AED™NH0

0,103
15,359
797
22,319
9,408
36,957
7,353

186,237

2013
AED000

[63,918
22,319

180,237

2013
AED'00

907,821
{189,218)

718,603

8,417

727,020

61

2012
AED 000

B.54t
8,154
114G
ER, 835
141,765
54,046
8,343

222,989

2042
AED 00D

204,154
18,835

222,989

2012
AEY000

027,762
(105,487}

822,275

13,167

335,382

o per annum (2012: 0.76% per
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Nofes to the consolidated financial sintements
fur the year ended 31 December 2013 {continucd)

R1H Other income
2013 2012
AED D AED'000
Reversal of project provisions and cost recoveries 1,157 431,533
(overnment granl income recognised upon handover 95.06]
of units in the Gate Tower {Note 33.1.b) > B
Government grant income recorded upon handover
of infrastructure assets (Note 33.1.¢) 434,841 -
Government grant income related to costs
recovered from Government (Note 33.2) 70,004 -
COthers 28,405 14,957
630,364 446,490
31 Earnings per share

Basic carnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year. As there are no dilutive instruments outstanding, basic and dilisted eamings per share are identical.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share atiributable to the owners of the Company is based
an the following data:

2013 2012
Earnings {AED *0{0)
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share
{profit for the year attributable to owners of the company) 2,246,294 1,340,658
Weighted average number af shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpase of
basic and diluted earnings per share 0,617.976,154 4,481,029 503

The weighted average number of shares for the previous vear for the purpose of basic and diluted
carnings per share includes ordinary shares that were to be issued upon the conversion of the mandatorily
converiible bonds (Note 17).

32 Dividends
At the annual general assembly held on 3 March 2013, the Sharcholders approved the recommendation
of the Board of Directors to distribute dividends of AED 0.06 per share or total of AED 268.9 million.

The Board of Directors propose a cash dividend of AED 0.07 per share for 2013. This is subject to the
approval of the Sharcholders at the annual general assembly.
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Notes to the censolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 {continucd)

33 Transactions and balances with related parties

Related parties include the Company’s major shareholders, Directors and businesses controlled by them
and their families or over which they exercise significant management influence as well as key
management personnel. The Government of Abu Dhabi, through entities controlled. or jointly controlled
by the Government of Abe Dhabi {topether relerred to as “Govermment™) is a maior shareholder in the

Comprany.

Related party balances:

2013 2012
AED 000 AED Q00
Due from Government {nct):
Refundable costs (Note 10.2) 2,785,587 4,601,270
Receivabie from assets sold 5,909,421 6, 735218
Other receivables 130,759 394,170
Advances received (Note 21 and 22) (5,436,502} £4,270,897)
1,369,265 A3%.761
Due lrom joint ventures (Note 10.5):
Cuerent 342,17 1,493
Non-currend i12,067 118,317
454,184 H9 R0
Due to joint ventures for project-related work:
Contract payables (32,692) £32,502)
Retention pavables {815) (52}
(33,507 (32,554)

Certain receivables from joint venlures carry interest of 6% and are repayable within 2 to 5 years from

the end of the year.

2iH3 2012
AED 000 AED'000
Bue from/(to) major sharcholder owned by Government andfor its
associated companies:

Receivable from project finance (Note 10.3) 555,101 463,022

Due from a related panty - 52,534
Due to a major shareholder, net {99,214) {72,135}
Interest bearing convertible bonds (Note {7 - {702,588}
£55,887 {229,187}
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

33 Transactions and balances with related parties (continued)

Significant transactions with related parties during the year are as follows:

2013 2012
AED B0 AED 00
Key management compensation:
Directors remuneration paid 16,000 16,000
Key management compensation:
Salaries, banuses and other benefits 18,521 11,427
Post-employment benefits 2,02 357
20,533 11,784
2013 2012
AED0(0 AEDOO0G
[ncome from Government and major sharcholder owned by
Government:
Revenue from sale of land and properties 1,812,013 7438,136
Projeet management income 47,497 217,988
Rental income (zross inflows) 239,476 201,853
Government grant income {Note 30) 400,502 -
2,699,788 7857977
Work provided by joint ventures 3,042 12,023
F'inance income from project finance and joint ventures 63,723 62,390

33.b  In lanuary 2013, Sorouh annousced that the Government of Abu Dhabi had agreed to reimburse
up to AED 1.6 billion of infrastructure costs, and to purchase units in the Gate Towers
development for AED 1.6 biltion. As of 31 December 2013, AED 2.6 billion has been received.
These transactions have been accounted for as follows:

aj) AED 1.3 billion of the amount received has been recorded as an advance received from
Government, included in “advances from customers™ and AED 1.3 billion has been recorded as
“advances from the Government of Aby Bhabi” under trade and other payables. As of
31 December 2013, the balance in advances from customers is AED 933 million (Note 21) and
AED 865 million in advances from Government of Abu Dhabi for refundable costs and managed
projects (MNote 22).
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Notes to the consolidnted firnneial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (¢continued)

33

b}

c}

Trunsactions and balances with related partics (continued)

The difference between the selling price of units in the Gate Towers and the [air market price has
been recorded as a deferred government grant under trade and other payables (Note 22). This
will be recognised in profit or loss upon handover of the units. During the vear, an amount of
AED 96.0 million was recognised as Government grant income upon handover of units.

The amount and timing of the infrastructure cost reimbursement is subject to the completion of
cerlain audit and technical inspections and assessments to be performed by the relevant
eovernment authority. Once these activities are completed, there will be reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and at that point it will be recognised as a deferred government
prant. Once the conditions of the grant are met, i.e. infrastructure assets are handed over to the
designated authorities, the deferred government prant witl be recognised in profit or loss. During
the year, an amount of AED 434.8 million was recognized as Government grant income upon
handover of infrastructire nssets.

Praring the year, the Group received AED 100 million from Abu Dhabi Govemment as a
compensation for certain costs incurred during the year, out of which, AED 70 million was
recognised as Government grant income and the remaining balance of AED 30 million is
recorded as deferred Government grant.

Qutstanding borrowings of AED 53,5758 million (31 December 2012: AED 4,505.1 million) are due o
the Government and banks controlied by the Government.

34

34.1

Commitmenis and conlingencies

Capital commiimenis

Capital expenditure contracted but not vet incorred ot the end of the vear is as follows:

2013 2012

AED'OOD AED 000

Projects under development 390,628 1,543,338
Zeimbursable project works in progress 6,488,606 3,310,565
Investments 83,885 08,105
Other 7,159 318,449
6,970,378 4,990,457

The abiove commitments are spread over a period of ane to five yvears.

The Greup has paid an amount of AED 408.9 million (2012: AED 140.6 million} as advances to the
suppliers and coniraciors against the above commitments.
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Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

34 Commitments and contingencies (continued)

342 Operating lease commitments

‘the Group has Teased out certain buildings. The amount of committed
follows:

The Graup as fessor

66

futere {ease inflows are as

2013 2012
AED’0DD AED 000

Buildings (over a pericd of 10 years):
Within one vear 57,112 283,356
In the second to fHth vear 1,009,808 362,416
Alter Aive years 298,110 620,127
1,565,040 1,774,899

The Growp as fessee

The Group has annual operating lease commitments with respect to rental of land and buildings. The

mintmum lease paviments are as follows:

Land {over a period of 67 vears):
Within one year
In the second to fifth vear
After five vears

Buildings {over a period of § vears) :
Within one year
In the second to fifth year

2033 2012
AED'Q00 AED000
41,724 12,091
150,058 51793
381,083 62,533
572,863 F26,467

- 31713

- 31,713
372,865 138,180

The Group does not have the option to purchase the leased premises at expiry of the lease period but the

lease can be renewed upon mutual agreements of both parties.
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Notes to the conselidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2043 (continued)

34 Commitments and contingencies (continucd)

J4.3  Contingencies

Lotters of credit and bonk voarantees

2013 2012
AED030 AED 000

Letters of credit and bank guarantees:
Issued by the Group J12 403 34,307
CGroup’s share in contingencies of joint veniures 203,467 4,777

Bruring 2012, a contractor fodged a claim, which was unsubstantinted in the notice, for AED 300 million,
allegedly for an extension of time and works performed and not paid.

35 Financial instruments

35.1  Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adepied, including the criteria for recognition,
the basts of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each
class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 3 1o the consolidated

finanrcial statements,

35.2  Categorics of financial instruments

2013 2012
AED00D AED 000
Financial assets
Available-for-sale Ninancial assets 102,642 151,361
Loans and receivables (including cash and bank balances) 17,065,306 15,271,031
Total 17,167,948 15,422 492
Financial lizbilities
Financiat liabilities measured at cost 19,595,459 18,180,067
Berivalive instruments in designated hedge accounting relationship 36,345 39378

Taoial 19,632,004 18,199,445
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Notes to the censolidated firancial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continacd)

35 Financial instrunients (continued)
353 Finaneinl risk management

‘The Group's Corporate Finance and Treasury function provides services to the business, coordinates
decess o domestic and international financial markets, monitors and manages financial risks based on
internally developed models, benchmarks and forecasts. The Group seeks to minimise the effects of
lancial risks by using appropriate risk managememt techniques including using derivative financial
instruments to hedge risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is govemed by manogement’s
analysis of market trends, Tiquidity position and predicted movements in interest rate and foreipn
currency rates which are reviewed by the management on a continuous basis.

The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments,
lor speculative purposes,

The Group analyses financial risks under the following captions:
354 Capital risk management

Capital risk is the risk that the Group is not able to manage its capital structure to ensure that all entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern.

The Group’s capital struciure comprises borrowings disclosed in Notes 17, 18 and 19, cash and bank
balances and equity atiributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued capital, share premium,
reserves and accumulated losses as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in eguiiy.

The Group monitors and adjusts its capital structure with a view to promote the lorg-term suecess of the
business while maintaining sustainable returns for shareliolders. This is achieved through a combination
of risk management actions including monitoring solvency, minimising financing cests, rigorous
investment appraisals and maintaining high standards of business conduc.

Key financtal measures that are subject to regular review include cash flow projections and assessment of
their ability to meet contracted commitments, projected gearing levels and compliance with borrowing
covenants, although no absolute targeis are set for these.

The Group menitars its cost of debt on a regular basis. At 31 December 2013, the weighted averape cost
of debt was 5.89% {2012: 6.11%). Investment and development opportunities are evaluated against an
appraprinie equity return in order to ensure that long-term shareholder value is created.

The covenants of two (2012: one) borrowing arrangements require the Group maintaining 3 minimum
equity of AED 6.0 billion.
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Notes to the consolitlated financial statements
for the year endded 3t December 2013 {¢ontinued)

35 Financial instruments (continued)
355  Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that the lair value or future cash lows of a financial asset or tiability will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign currency risk,
miterest rate risk and other price risk.

i) Foreign currency risk muanagement

The Group has no significant cress-border trading transactions and therefore, foreign exchange
transaction exposure is negligible, However. it does borrow money in foreign currencies primarily in US
Dollars. The Group's currency exposure therefore is in relation to the repayment of loans and also the
transfation risk associated with converting outstanding loan balances back into UAE Dirhams in the
Group consolidated accounts at the end of each reporting period. The exchange rate between UAE
Dirhams and US Dollars is fixed and therefore the Group considers foreign exchange risk associated with
repayment of loans and translation as minimum.

Foreign currency sensitiviey analvsis

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
2013 2012 2013 2012
AEDA00 AEDO00 AEDQ0D AEDO00
US Dolfar 7,350,102 4,934,439 369,821 296,887

There is no significant impact on US Dollar as the UAE Dirham is pezged to the US Dolfar,

&} Iiterest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the Group borrow funds at both fixed and floating
interest rates. The risk is managed by the Group by maintzining an appropriate mix between fixed and

Hoating rate borrowings, by the use of interest rate swap contracts,

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in Notes
13, 17, 18 and 19.
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A5 Financial instruments (continued)
35.5  Market risk management {continued}
f1) futerest rate risk management fcontinned)

fateresf rate sensitiviey anafvsis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both
derivatives and non-derivative insiruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate assets and
linbitities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of asset or linkility outstanding at the end ol the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.

if intcrest rates had been 100 basis points higher/fower and all other variables were held constant, the
CGroup’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 would decreasefincrease by AED 46.9 mitlion
{2042: profit decrease/increase by AED 80.0 million), The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has
decreased due to siguificant loan repayments during the year,

fferest rafe sy caniraces

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees 10 exchange the difference between fixed and
floating rate interest amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the
Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rate on the fair value of issued fixed rate debt and the cash
Now exposures on the issued variable rale debr.

Cash flow fiedoes

The following table details the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap
contracts outstanding at the end of the reporting period:

Averape contracted Notional principal
fixed inferest rate amouni Fair value Cash Mows

013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 203 2012

Y 2 AED'OD0 AEDO00  AED'GOC  AEDR'S00  AEDWIGF AED'00D

Less than 1 year 4.70% 5930 313,038 257916 9,867 1,947 9,867 1,947
I to 2 vears .07% 393% 321,307 215,038 16,203 9,354 16,203 9,294
210 5 years 6.07% 4.07% 336,305 151,540 15,544 20,849 15,544 20,849
ddore than 5 years 6.07% 6.07% 111,844 TR.442 £868 7,288 4,568 7,288

1,082,994 725,936 46,182 IH378 46,482 39,378

All interest rate swap contracts exchanging floating rate interest amounts for fixed rate interest amounis
are designated as cash flow hedges in order to reduce the Group’s cash flow exposure resulting from
variable interest rates on borrowings. The interest rate swaps and the paymenis on the lean occur
simulianeoosly.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments were contracted with counterpartics operating in the United
Arab Emirates.
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33 Financial instruments (continucd)
356 Crelit risk management

Credit risk in relation to the Group, refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual
oblizations resufting in financial joss to the Group.

Key areas where the Group is exposed to credit risk are trade and other receivables and bank and cash
bajances and derivative Hnancial assets (liguid assets).

The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of
mitieating the risk of financial loss from defaults, The Group attempts to control credit nisk by
moniloring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific non-related counterparties, and
continually assessing the creditworthiness of such non-related counterparties.

Cuncentrafion of credif risk

Concentration of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are ¢engaged in similar business
activities, or activitics in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause
their ability to meei contractual obligations Lo be similarly affected by changes in economic, pofitical or
other conditions. Concenltration of credit risk indicales the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance
to developments affecting a particular industry or geographic location. Details on concentration of trade
receivable balances are disclosed in Note 10. Management believes that the coneeatratian of credit risk is
mitigated by high credit worthiness and financial stability of its trade customers.

At 31 December 2013, 100% (2012: 100%) of the deposiis were placed with 6 banks. Balances with
banks are assessed to have low credit risk of default since these banks are among the major banks
operating in the UAE and are highly regulaied by the central bank.

Trade and other receivables and balances with banks and derivative financial assets are not secured by
any collateral. The amount that best represents maximum credit risk exposure on financial assels at the
end of the reporting period, in the event counter parties fail to perform their obligations generally
approximates their carrying value,
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Nutes to the consolidated financial siatements

for the year ended 31 December 2013 {continued)

A5 Financial instrumezts {cantinueil}

357 Liguidity risk management

The responsibility tor Hquidity risk maragement rests with the management of the Group, which has
built an appropriate liguidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short,
medium and long term funding and liguidily management requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by mamwining adequate reserves, hanking facilities and committed bomowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial

assets and linbifitics.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
assets and liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cask flows of non-
derivative financial assets and Habilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay or collect. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. Maturity profile of non-
dertvative financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Ellective
interest
rate
31 December 2013:
Firtancial asseis
Son-intgrest hearing mstraments .
Receivables from project tinance 11.23%
Warizhlhe mlerest rale instruments MNote 13
‘Foral
Financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing instrutments -
Mon-canvertible bands Mo B
Freed interest rate instrumenls 4%
Yariable interest mle instuments tote 20
Total
31 December 2012
Financial assets
Wan-interest bearing instrumuents -
Receivables fram project finange 1243%
Wariohle interest rate instrements Wale 13
Toral
Financial ahilidies
MNon-interest dearipg instremants -
Nen-convertible bends Note 19
Fixed interest rate mstrements 125
YVariable interest mte instruments Nowe 20

Tatal

lta} 3 months
< | month maniths  to fyear fioSyears > Syears Total
AED'GO0  AER'S00 AEDR'DH) AED'ROD  AEDRGHD AED000
350,934 22,882 9,950,428 240741 - 12,572,185
- 17,466 84,026 245,639 244,626 30,757
2,619,718 586,250 2,109,495 - - 5,425,473
2,980,652 626,598 12,083,949 2,653,580 244,626 18,589,415
219 452,510 451,540 1,388,157 - 6,351,036
- - 10,332 1,717,290 - 2,737,622
- - 3431542 2,964,749 - 6.396,291
10 452,510 7.954,0M TR %G - ¥5A86,249
231083 171036 6669151 5678507 - 12,953,797
- 17,466 169,497 295,348 115,145 837756
00136 and 148 1230489 - - 3,239,773
611,319 909670 B.029.137  3.975233 115,443 16,031,326
1% 822350 5442901 1162730 - 7028197
- - - AR0 0G0 - 4,590, 0}
- - 8712 - - B.712
15414 0698 1341842 3521957 i9.304 3920215
15.6H} B53.048 6393455 92740 19304 16556124
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o Fair value of financial instruments

Except as disclosed in the following table, Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and fnancial liabilities recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial stalemenls
approximate their fair vilues.

As at 31 December 2013

Carrying Fair

amount value

Finaneial liabilities at amorised cost AEDO00 AED'000D
Sukuk-al-ljarah (Note 193 2,754,000 2,794,439
Corporate bonds {Mote 19) 4,581,395 4,759,830

Following the amendment to IFRS 7, all financial instruments that are required to be measured at fair
value {subsequent to initial recognition) should be disclosed in a fair value hierarchy or grouping into 3
levels (Levels | to 3) based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level T fair value is derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
Habilities. Level 2 fair value measurements are derived from inputs other than quoted prices, and Leve] 3

are those that are derived from valuation technigues using uncbservable inputs.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s financial assets that are stated at fair value are grouped as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
AED'00D AEDC0 AEDTOG0 AED'0)0
Available-for-sale invesiments

Equities 11,325 01,117 - 102,042

The fair values of derivative instruments are determined by independent valuers (see Note 35.5) and are
measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield
curves derived from quoted interest rates.

There were no transfers berween Levels during the year,

37 Business combinaticn

During the vear, the Company acquired 100% ownership interest in Sorouh Real Estate PISC through a
share exchange. Accordingly, the ownership interest in the following entities which were subsidiarics of
Sorouh Real Estate PJSC, was transferred to the Company.
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37 Business cormbination (continued)
Proportion
of voting
equily inlerests
Name of subsitiaries Principal activity acquired
Liote Fawers Shams Abyg Dhabi LLC Brevelopment of Gate Towers FOG
Suzafy Ahu b Bead Esaae TLC At as Mudareb in scecantance with the [Hneg
Sukuk lssue strocture
Serenh Internationat 1imired Elalding company of foreipn entitics 1%
Sarvah Intemaotional Development Eimited Development of propedics and real estate 175
Sareuh inlermational Moeroccoe Limied Brevelopment of propenics and read estase 104%5
L.udu Island for Project Development LLOC Brevelupment of properics and real estate 1045
Fital Liva Beal Estate Investing LG {"roperty, rental and management HK o
Ak Seih Real Estole Management LLEC Muanapement and feasing of real estate; read 91.4%
catate grojects investeneat
Seih Sdeirah Beat Esate ELC Froperey rental and manasement; real estate 21.4%
projects investment
Sarcuh Epyps for Invesiment and Tourism Development  [nvestment in toutism activiey 8094
Khidmah LLC Management and leasing of real estate G0%%
Pivol Engineering & General Centrocting Co. {WLL) Engineering ard general construciion works TEE
37.1  Asseis acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition
AEDODN
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 138,429
Entangible assets 375
Investment properties 4,573,274
Investment in associates and joint ventures 291497
Axailable tor sale financial assets 93,746
Trade and ather receivables 2,720,943
Bevelopment work in progress 4,565,100
Land held for resale 1,748,470
inventories 1,764
Cash and bank balances 1,321,478

To1al asseis

LIABILITIES

Barrowings

Retentions payable

Provision of emplovees’ end of service benefits
Advances from customers

Trade and other payables

Other financial liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets acquired

15,094,776

2,112,140
271,078
44,977
2,933,585
1,934,979
1,770

7,298,529

8,396,247
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37 Business combination (continued)

37.2  Noen-controiling intercsis

‘The non-controlling interest recoenised at the acguisition date was measured by reference 10 the fair value
of the non-controdling interest and amounted to AED 29:4.4 million.

Company Percentage nf
nen-centrolling

interest

Pivot Engineering & General Contracting Co, WLL 1%
Rhidmah LLC 4%
Soroub Egypt for Investment and Tourism Development §.A E. 20%
Al Seib Real Estate Management LLC 3.6%
Seih Sdeirah Real Estate LLC 8.6%

37.3  Gain arising on acquisition

AED008
Consideration transferred equal 10 fair value of 3,381 millior shares issued to the .
. 3,511,030
shareholders of acquiree company
Add: Fair value of non-controlling interesis 294,435
Less: Fair vahie of identifiable net assets acquired (8,396,247
Gain arising on acquisition taken to profit or loss for the year (2,590,782}

Acquisition-retated costs were recognised as an expense during the period in which they were incumed.

The gain on acquisition arises from the difference beiween the fair valee of Sorouh’s assefs, including
fand assets which were previously held at nominal vajue, and the consideration transferred.

IFRS 3 determines that the effective acquisition date is, inter alia, the date on which all required
conditions and approvals have been substantively satisfied.

Management has determined that 15 May 2013 was the date on which all the material conditions
associated with the merger were substantively satisfied. Management has therefore concluded that the
effective acquisition dale is 15 May 2013, Thercfore, the fair value of Sorouh’s net assets was also
measured at that date and the consideration was measured at Aldar's share price at that date.
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37 Business combination {continued)
37.4  Impact of acquisition on the resulls of the Group

ncluded in the revenue for the twelbve months period is AED 1,194 million autributable to Sorouh. Since
the acquisition date, the business operations of Sorouli have been absorbed by Aldar and it therefore
became impracticable to extract the profit atribuiable to Sorouh for the twelve months ended
31 Becember 2013,

H1ad the acquisition of Sorouly been effected at | January 2013, the revenue of the Group for the twelve
muniths ended 31 Becember 2013 would have been AED 6,506 million, and the profit for the twelve
months period would have been AED 2,225 million.

37.5  Net cash flow on acquisition
As mentioned in Note 21.3 above, the consideration transferred was entirely in the form of shares

resulting in no cash outflow. Net cash and bank balances transferred to the Group on acquisition were
AED 1.52 billion,
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Notes to the consolidiated Brancial statemeats
far the year ended 3t December 2013 {continued)

38 Segment information (continued)
38.1  Business segments (continued)

The accounting policies of the reporiable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit camed by each segment without allocation of central administration,
selling and marketing costs and directors® salaries, share of profits of associates and joint ventures, other
eains and losses, finance income and finance costs, This is the measure reparted to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment periormance.

For the purposes of moenitering segment performance and allocating resources between segments:

+  ail assets are allocated to reportable sepments other than interests in associates and joint ventures,
avifable for sale assets and ‘other financial assels’. Assets used Jointly by reportable segments
are allocated on the basis of the revenues earned by individual reportable segments; and

* ol fabilities are allocated 1o reportable segments other than borrowings, convertible and non-
convertible bends and *other financial fiabilities'. Liabilities for which repartable sepments are
Jointly liable are allocated in proportion to segment assets,

38.2  Geographical segments

‘The Group operated only in one geographical seament, i.e., United Arab Emirates.

K1 MNon cush transactions

391 During the year, the Group issued 3,381,000 shares for a value of AED 5,511.0 million (Mote 21.3)
as consideration for the acquisition of 100% interest in Sorouh., As there was no cash
constderation, only the cash acquired has been presented under investment sctivities in the
consalidated statement of cash flows.

392 During the year, the remaining convertible mandatory bonds of AED 693.9 million were converted
by the bendholder into shares. There was no impact in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
40 Approval of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue
or 1 February 2014



